
Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes December 6, 2010 1 
 

POLSON CITY COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
CITY HALL – CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
DECEMBER 6, 2010, 7:00 P.M. 
 
ATTENDANCE:  City Commissioners:  Don Smith, John Campbell, Judy Preston, Mike 
Lies, Elsa Duford, Fred Funke, and Mayor Pat DeVries presiding.  City Manager Todd 
Crossett and City Attorney James Raymond present.   Others present:  Ric Smith, Suzanne 
Luepke, Denise Richardson, Peter Daniels, Rory Horning, Ken Siler, Paul London, David 
Devore, Murat Kalinyaprak, Librarian Marilyn Trosper, Library Board of Trustees Chair 
Jackie Gran, Library Administrative Assistant Mary O’Brien, Police Chief Doug Chase, 
Assistant Police Chief John Stevens, and Sergeant Clint Cottle.   
 
APPROVAL OF PROPOSED AGENDA:  Commissioner Lies moved to approve the 
agenda as proposed, seconded by Commissioner Smith.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

A.  CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 15, 2010 
B. NOVEMBER 15-30 CLAIMS 

Commissioner Lies moved to approve the consent agenda, items A & B, seconded by 
Commissioner Campbell.  Rory Horning commented that his statement in regard to the City 
Charter had been a question not a comment and asked that the minutes be changed to reflect that.  
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:  City Manager Crossett advised that they were wrapping up 
Phase I of the Skyline project which include the environmental phase and preliminary 
engineering.  He estimated they were about 40% complete.  They were working with property 
owners and Stelling engineering.  They hoped to begin construction in the spring, possibly 
working on the bridge and canal sooner.  They would need to go out for RFQs for the final 
engineering and constructions.    Mayor DeVries inquired if there would be any public hearings 
on the project.  City Manager Crossett advised that there were none scheduled, but they planned 
to begin holding them after January 1st.   
Lake County Community Development Corporation would be holding a bidding class for local 
companies on December 8th.  He recommended any of the local businesses attend, the class was 
free and would be useful expertise.  Mayor DeVries noted that the Chamber of Commerce would 
be holding a similar class. 
City Manager Crossett directed attention to the construction underway at City Hall due to the 
energy efficiency grant the City had been awarded.  He noted that they were doing much of the 
work in house by the Parks Department crew, who was working hard early in the morning and 
coming in on weekends to work on the project.   
City Manager Crossett, Water and Sewer Superintendent Porrazzo, Building Inspector Melvin, 
and City Engineer Johnson had went to learn from the new membrane wastewater treatment 
facility in Kalispell.  The Kalispell utilities department had shared the lessons in funding, the 
selection and process of the facilities, and the timeline they had followed.   
City Manager Crossett and Planning Official Weaver were putting together a calendar for the 
PDC.  The first draft was completed and they would be forming a committee in January which 
would meet every other Thursday at 1:00 p.m. through the spring.  He added that the public was 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes December 6, 2010 2 
 

welcome to come to the meetings.  He encouraged them to hit the code hard and engage a fairly 
robust process.  The time was good with building being slow, and the expected the rewrite to be 
completed in fall 2011.  Don Smith noted that he had heard flak in regards to the City’s 
processes.  City Manager Crossett agreed and advised that they were looking at streamlining the 
process to make it more efficient.   
There would be an additional workshop in regards to the Mission Valley Aquatic Center 
December 7th at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall. 
The Highway 93 corridor study was proceeding, particularly on stormwater issues.  They would 
begin generating routes in January and public meetings would follow in February.   
He proposed that the Commissioners plan an annual strategic planning exercise to figure out 
what the Commission’s priorities are, and over time they could see a vision and know what did 
and did not work.  Mayor DeVries agreed that they should set one up and felt it was important to 
hold one every year in some format.  City Manager Crossett advised that he would like to 
facilitate the meeting and thought a mission statement for the City was a good place to start 
along with a tactical work plan.   
There had been a water leak on 1st Street West the previous Thursday evening and the whole 
water and sewer crew had responded in about 5 minutes and repaired the leak.  There was 
damage to the road, but they would not be able to fully repair it until spring.  He noted that James 
Raymond had brought hot coffee out to the workers.  Commissioner Smith noted that another 
leak had sprung up about 75 feet from the first one.  Commissioner Campbell pointed out that it 
was a very old main, about the same age as the recently replaced Main Street water line.   
City Manager Crossett beseeched property owners to only use sand on the new Main Street 
sidewalks.  They required a season to fully set before salt or other deicer could be used or it 
would void the warranty on them.   
He commended the street department’s hard work on keeping the snow clear, noting that there 
was a great deal more snow than the last several years.  He added that he appreciated any 
feedback on the roads.  He requested that residents move their trashcans from the street so that 
the snow plows could better clear the street.   
He encouraged any feedback on the stop signs and parking situation on Main Street, and he 
planned to have a public meeting on those issues in February so they could be taken care of in 
the spring.   
He noted that fire hall looked great, volunteers had painted the interior with paint that had been 
donated by Ace Hardware.   
They were working on the airport contract, which would be sent to Helena for approval by the 
FAA.   
The golf course restaurant was scheduling parties and catering events through the winter.   
 
APPROVAL/DISAPPROVAL HIRING OF POLICE OFFICER THROUGH C.O.P.S. 
GRANT:  Assistant Police Chief John Stevens advised that himself, Sergeant Cottle, Chief 
Chase, City Manager Crossett, and City Clerk Parker had held meetings to look at the figures and 
review the grant.  City Manager Crossett advised that the City had tentatively been awarded the 
grant contingent on the approval of the City Commission.  The grant involved complete payroll 
for the first three years of the officer’s employment, with the City obligated to pay for at least 
one following year.  He advised that they would likely need to keep the officer beyond the fourth 
year, and so as part of their process they had looked to continue funding the wages, not just for a 
single year.  They had worked on coming up with a realistic, conservative plan.  He noted that 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes December 6, 2010 3 
 

the violent crime rate in Polson was twice that of similar sized cities in Montana with the same or 
larger police forces.  There had been a fatal event within the last couple weeks, it happened 
during a shift change, or there would only have been a single officer on duty.  The incident had 
been handled well, but had there only been a single officer, there would have been a greater 
chance of harm to the officer and those involved.  With the continued annexation of wholly 
surrounded properties, particularly in the Skyline area, the police forces area of coverage would 
be increasing, taking them further from town and increasing the response times.  He stressed that 
the need was there for an additional officer.  He advised that should their predictions prove 
incorrect by year four, the City had the option to apply for a financial hardship and be let out of 
the grant obligation.  He noted that they had looked at various revenue streams and the actual 
revenue and expenditures of the previous several years.  The broke down the actual and made a 
similar projection for the upcoming years.  They made the assumption that the economy would 
be stabilizing by year four, with increases in revenue significantly from the continuing the 
pursuit of wholly surrounded annexations.  The increased revenue would be between $32,000-
$135,000 depending on the properties that were annexed.  They felt there was a reasonable 
expectation that they could fund the officer, but there was no guarantee and risk was involved.  
Commissioner Funke moved to approve the hiring of an officer through the C.O.P.S. grant, 
seconded by Commissioner Smith.  Commissioner Duford expressed that she was feeling 
negative, there was no relief in sight and no encouraging projections in the news for the next five 
years.  She felt unsure that they would be able to fund the officer even though it would be 
beneficial to the department.  She added that was supportive of the police department, but not 
feeling positive about the funding.  Commissioner Smith agreed that the economic downturn was 
frightening, but the more the economy was down the more violence and crime, a catch-22.  He 
was glad that there was the option to apply for the financial hardship, but he hoped they would 
not have to use it.  Assistant Chief Stevens commented that they were setting a plan and 
documenting it, but if there was no recovery, there was the option to apply for the waiver for the 
fourth year.  Mayor DeVries expressed that she felt better after seeing the analysis, adding that 
these were the shakiest economic time they’d ever seen.  City Manager Crossett advised that they 
had used the historical actuals from the previous years, which included the financial crisis.  
Commissioner Preston expressed that she saw a need for Polson to have the officer, when 
comparing Polson’s crime rates to other cities.  She felt that the service the police provided was 
important and needed to be strong.  Ric Smith commented that if the economy was not better in 
3-4 years, safety should be a top priority of the City.  He asked the Commissioners to support the 
acceptance of the grant.  Rory Horning commented that there was a tool they could use if crime 
rates were up called community policing.  He commented that the needed to get out and pull the 
community together.  He felt that if they had community policing there would be less need for 
the police and people would be safer.  He commented that during the Main Street block party he 
did not see a need for any police presence there.  He felt that they would find really good results 
in a community police committee.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
FOUR YEAR REAPPOINTMENT OF A. DOUG OLSON AS POLSON CITY JUDGE 
JANUARY 1, 2011 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2014:  City Manager Crossett advised that 
the City Attorney had reviewed the contract, all of the terms were the same.  Judge Olson was 
happy to continue, and he felt that he worked well with the City and was doing a good job.  
Commissioner Lies moved to approve the four year reappointment of A. Doug Olson as 
Polson City Judge January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2014, seconded by Commissioner 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes December 6, 2010 4 
 

Funke.  Commissioner Duford inquired if there was a salary increase.  City Manager Crossett 
replied that there was not.  Murat Kalinyaprak inquired what the terms of the contract were.  City 
Manager Crossett replied that the terms were the same with a monthly payment of $1,584.  He 
pointed out that Judge often put more time than he was contracted for.  The motion carried 
unanimously.   
 
REVIEW RECOMMENDATION TO SPEND $50,000 OF TIF FUNDS FOR THE FY 
2010-2011 FOR MAIN STREET PROJECT:  Jules Clavadetscher advised that the PRA had 
voted unanimously to recommend $50,000 in TIF funds to pay for improvements that were not 
included in the Streetscape project, including lights, landscaping, and benches.  The PRA had 
voted unanimously against giving the County $1,000 annually to pay for the an nual cost of the 
software which calculated the TIF funds.  City Manager Crossett advised that there was no vote 
at this time, and that the decision was the Commissioners.  They were not bound by the PRA 
recommendations.  The software that calculated the TIF funds was originally purchased by both 
the City and County.  There had been problem with the State’s numbers originally and the cost to 
reassess and correct those numbers had cost $4,000 which the County had paid as they received 
the largest portion.  The logic in the County’s request for the City to pay for the City was that it 
was a benefit to the City, however the County is mandated by State law to collect and distribute 
taxes, the City could not take on that task.  Jules Clavadetscher added that no other tax district in 
the area paid the County to collect or distribute their taxes, and these TIF funds were City of 
Polson tax dollars.  He added that the County had shown good faith with the City, particularly 
with their help on the Main Street project by participating in the SID and use of their CTEP 
funds.  They would like to maintain a good relationship with the County.   
 
REQUEST TO APPROVE THREE YEAR CONTRACT WITH AUDITOR RONALD 
PAUL FOLZ CPA FOR FY 2010-2012:  City Manager Crossett advised that it was a 
requirement to have an annual audit performed.  Ronald Paul Folz CPA had completed three 
years of audits for the City, and he felt they were doing a good job.  He added that for continuing 
audits it was helpful that they were familiar with the City’s books.  Commissioner Campbell 
inquired if there was a cost savings continuing with the same auditor.  Mayor DeVries replied 
that there usually was.  She added that very few CPAs did municipal audits, none in the local 
area, and Ronald Paul Folz CPA was one of the best.  Treasurer Bonnie Manicke advised that 
when they had received bids three years ago they had been the lowest.  Commissioner Lies 
commended their work.  Treasurer Manicke pointed out that if the clerk’s needed assistance or 
he sees an issue, they would critique it and help them to fix it so the there are no mistakes.  
Commissioner Preston moved to approve a three year contract with auditor Ronald Paul 
Folz CPA for FY 2010-2012, seconded by Commissioner Smith.  Murat Kalinyaprak inquired 
about the renewal terms and if the City had a standard for renewing contracts.  Mayor DeVries 
responded that the contract was written and provided by the State of Montana and was the 
standard form.  Murat Kalinyaprak inquired about getting out of the contract.  City Manager 
Crossett advised that they could if they did not live up to the contract.  Murat Kalinyaprak 
commented that there were differences in the terms for excusal in the City’s various contracts.   
He felt there was no security for some, and questioned the City Attorney’s contract notice 
requirement.  Commissioner Smith commented that each contract was probably individually 
negotiated.  Murat Kalinyaprak questioned what was the length of the City Attorney’s contract, 
and what the generally accepted reasons for a dismissal were. City Manager Crossett called the 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes December 6, 2010 5 
 

Commission’s attention the fact that the matter under consideration was the auditor’s contract.  
The motion carried unanimously.   
 
APPROVE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR TRANSFER OF LIBRARY TO 
LIBRARY DISTRICT:  City Manager Crossett advised that the agreement included the transfer 
of the property and the building to the district, insurance coverage, the transfer of employees 
records.  The City would not be paying out the accumulated vacation and sick leave for the 
employees.  The City would not be requiring the library to repay the first half of the fiscal year.  
There had been a committee that sat down with the board including Mayor DeVries, 
Commissioner Campbell, and Commissioner Lies, they recommended to not include the payback 
in the agreement.  Commissioner Lies moved to approve the interlocal agreement for 
transfer of the library to the library district, seconded by Commissioner Funke.  
Commissioners Campbell and Lies expressed that the agreement the City Attorney had wrote 
was well covered.  Commissioner Preston inquired about the reason for not requesting a 
payback.  Mayor DeVries advised that cash flow was a big problem for the City, and it would be 
difficult for the district to start out with a huge debt.  She also noted that many of the funds were 
from the same taxes, and the district was taking on all of the accrued vacation and sick leave.  
Commissioner Campbell expressed that they wanted the library to succeed, and he didn’t feel 
they could provide all of the services they had proposed if they started out with debt.  He felt this 
was a way in which the City could help the district succeed.  He added that all of those future 
funds that would have been expended on the library could not go towards the reserves.  Mayor 
DeVries noted that they had budgeted the 6 months of expenditures, but they had not budgeted 
revenue for a payback, so it would not affect the current year’s budget.  Commissioner Lies 
expressed his agreement with Commissioner Campbell.  Suzanne Luepke congratulated the 
Board of Trustees and expressed appreciation for their hard work and what they had 
accomplished.  The motion carried unanimously.  Library Board of Trustees Jackie Gran 
expressed thanks to the Commissioners, the City Manager, and the City Attorney.  She noted that 
the library would continue to be an asset for the City with their cutting edge services.   
 
OCTOBER 2010 CASH REPORT:  City Treasurer Bonnie Manicke advised that that there 
were 5 funds with a negative balance.  The general fund’s balance was -$147,300.53, however 
the City would be receiving HB124 of $145,000 and the November and December tax collection 
of about $400,000.  The building department remained negative at -$43,652.  The department 
had done well in the fall, but permits had slowed in October.  The tree fund was -$488 due to 
payroll expenditures for the tree inventory grant.  She noted that the funds must be expended 
before the grant would reimburse them, so the fund would be replenished after that was 
processed.  The recycling grant fund was in the negative as well for the same reason.  She noted 
that the funds often must be expended first but were not always paid back in the same period.  
The stormwater fund had -$2,619.91and would be drawn lower after the final payments for the 
stormwater portion of streetscape.   She and Water and Sewer Superintendent Porrazzo would be 
working together to put together a transfer from sewer funds or the replacement and depreciation 
funds.  The golf revenue bond had made a semiannual payment on an outstanding bond.  A new 
fund had been set up for TIF district #1, which the TIF fund contributions to the Streetscape 
would be transferred from.  There were $10,000 in outstanding TIF Funds from 2009, there was 
a problem with the accounting at the State level and they were in a holding account until the 
Department of Revenue signed off on them.  Commissioner Lies moved to approve the 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes December 6, 2010 6 
 

October 2010 cash report, seconded by Commissioner Preston.  The motion carried 
unanimously.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS OF SIGNIFICANT INTEREST TO THE PUBLIC 
NOT ON THE AGENDA:  Suzanne Luepke inquired about the Mission Valley Aquatic Center.  
Mayor DeVries advised that there would be a work session the following night at 6:00 p.m.  She 
encouraged public attendance.  City Manager Crossett briefly reviewed the presentation from the 
November 30th work session on the Mission Valley Aquatic Center.  Denise Peterson inquired 
about the price of the Tamsco building.  City Manager Crossett advised that earlier in the year 
they had offered the building for $750,000.  The Mission Valley Aquatic Center was 
approaching the City about donating the land the building sits on and set up a long term lease for 
grant purposes.  Mayor DeVries added that they may not use the whole building and they would 
be hope that the City would not charge the $1,500/month lease.  Comissioner Smith inquired if 
they would be covering City uses for the building for the utilities.  Commissioner Preston noted 
that some felt the public was not getting participation because it came out of nowhere, it also 
came out of nowhere to the Commission.  She added that the sooner they were able to vote on 
the matter the more beneficial it would be for MVA.  Mayor DeVries agreed that they should 
give them a vote as soon as possible.  Murat Kalinyaprak commented that there were 2 ½ acres 
donated in Ridgewater at the time it was approved by the voters, and he felt that they had 
presented that location to the public when the voters approved it.  City Attorney Raymond 
advised that the tax levy district was for maintenance and operation and it did not go into effect 
until the pool was completed.  Commissioner Campbell noted that the vote had approved the 
opearation mainentance, but did not include the location.  Mayor DeVries advised that the land 
in Ridgewater was proposed, but it was not until phase II or III of the development, which had 
not occurred yet.  Murat Kalinyaprak commented that people may not have supported the project 
if they knew it was not going to be at the location that was proposed.  City Manager Crossett 
noted that there would be a work session the following day on the matter.   
Rory Horning commented on the November 4th meeting and comments he had made about 
Streetscape.  He read comments he had made from the August 2nd meeting minutes and 
commented that the gavel had been banged.  He commented that his partner had been generous 
in developing property and contributing to the TIF district, and despite Becky Dupuis assuring 
that there were no plans to change the Edgewater Realty property, the property was torn up after 
that meeting.  The irrigation had been torn up and left horrendously and 5,000 gallons of water 
had escaped.  He claimed they had tried courteously approaching the City Manager and had been 
told it wasn’t his fault; that the Commissioners had met on Main Street decided what to do with 
the property.  He had been assured his land wouldn’t be changed, but the contractor had come 
alone and tore it up.  He was just a business owner, but no one had came and met with them to 
discuss putting the property back together.  He expressed displeasure that some elves had came 
and put the irrigation back into the ground where it was not originally, and they could not test to 
make sure it works.  He commented that property owners were not involved in the decisions.  He 
commented they had been the pariah of City Hall because they were trying to find out who was 
responsible for the damage to their property and who would be paying for it and repairing it 
because it was private property, not the contractors or the City’s though it was a City easement.  
He commented that he had been gaveled down when he asked for assurances that his property 
would not be changed.  He commented that he didn’t feel that asking for a timeline for the repair 
of their property and investments was out of line.  He commented that he asked the City Manager 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes December 6, 2010 7 
 

for his timeline and he had received an email, which he wanted because he didn’t want to go 
through and read the stuff to get a timeline.  He commented that the City was telling private 
citizens that it was not their problem.  He asked that they find a way that they could sit down as 
neighbors and figure out how to put the property back together because he didn’t feel they should 
have to pay for it.  Commissioner Smith commented that this situation has gotten out of hand in 
Mr. Horning’s eyes and if this was a genuine issue he would rather see a workshop scheduled, 
with only the facts being discussed.  He didn’t feel it was appropriate to bring up during a public 
meeting and beat anyone’s head into the sand.  Mayor DeVries commented that was a private 
issue and not a public matter.  She was unsure that it was something that comes to the 
Commission, that they did not need to be involved it was a matter for the City Manager and City 
Attorney.  Rory Horning commented that he thought they would want to deal with something 
that was included in their official minutes because he was being told that they were the people 
creating a liability for the City.  He commented that he did not want to meet with the same 
people and rehash the matter, he wanted to meet with those responsible.  He added that he only 
dealt in facts, especially on property rights.   
Murat Kalinyaprak commented that he agreed that it was not appropriate to commented about 
other peoples’ contracts when they are not on that agenda item, but he didn’t think it was right 
for the City Manager to interject and say something about it.  He commented that the City 
Manager had done that twice to him even though he was not the only one speaking on the subject 
and it didn’t seem to bother anyone but the City Manager.  He questioned who was running the 
meeting.  Mayor DeVries responded she was running the meeting, and the City Manager was 
there to help and she wanted his input.   
Ric Smith commented that his observation that public comment on matters of significant interest 
to the public was a good idea but it was getting out of control.  He encouraged the Commission 
to go back to having time limits, adding that giving an opinion or making an opinion should be 
able to be done in a couple minutes.   
Peter Daniels inquired about the Mission Valley Aquatic Center proposal and was concerned 
about the cost to the City.  Mayor DeVries advised that there were many concerns, and one of 
their options did involve a City lease.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:50 p.m. 
 

__________________________________________ 
Mayor Pat DeVries      

___________________________________ 
Attest:  Kala Parker, City Clerk 


